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AN EXTENSIVE NETWORK CAPTURING GROWING OPPORTUNITIES IN CHINA

The Group’s sales points span the whole nation, with footprints in all major cities such as Beijing, Shanghai, Chongaing,
Tianjin, Guangzhou, Hong Kong and Macau. Such an extensive network enables the Group to efficiently respond to
customer needs and deepen its market penetration in China.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had a total of 1,680 retail outlets, comprising 1,534 concessionary counters and 146
retail shops in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BIRE

BY BUSINESS BY LOCATIONS BY BRANDS BY PRODUCTS
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* excluding the one-off gain of HK$42.0 million
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

To the shareholders of Embry Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Embry Holdings Limited
set out on pages 78 to 169, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2009,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

ZHFERBR AT FH 2009
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong, 31 March 2010
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CONSOLIDATED

INCOME STATEMENT

ol

Year ended 31 December 2009 HE-TTNF+_-_A=+—BItFE

ZHFERBR AT FH 2009

2009 2008
—EENE | —TI\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Wizt FETT FET
REVENUE Uz 5 1,176,089 973,342
Cost of sales SHERAR (234,900) (208,321)
Gross profit EH 941,189 765,021
Other income and gains E A A R iz 6 9,277 18,752
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R RS (654,627) (569,563)
Administrative expenses THRAZ (125,084) (116,385)
Other expenses HAFZ 7 (3,046) (2,720)
Finance costs BEERAR 8 - (2)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREL AR 9 167,709 95,108
Income tax expense FrS TR 12 (53,521) (23,120)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KATHEE AEM
ATTRIBUTABLE TO FERF
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 14 114,188 71,983
EARNINGS PER SHARE RATEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EiEERER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 16
— Basic (HK cents) — &R (B 28.44 17.95
~ Diluted (HK cents) —#8 (B 27.94 17.83

Details of the dividends are disclosed in note 15 to the financial

statements.

P B E B EH N M RRM L5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mo=BWm

Year ended 31 December 2009 HE-TTNF+_-_A=+—BItFE

2009 2008
—BEIEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit for the year FEm A 114,188 71,983
Other comprehensive income: Ep 2wl A ¢
Exchange differences arising on BERINEEREE BN T
translation of foreign operations 1,060 24,304
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME EABREBEAEGMEE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO ZHEKRALE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 115,248 96,287




eHEERERAT #8200 00

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL PO

n\ITC] Z%%Hﬁ;%%%

31 December 2009 —EENF+=-A=+—H

SITION

2009 2008
—EENF —EENEF
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
K FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - W RS 17 203,519 205,200
Investment property EME 18 32,000 30,000
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT T AR E A 19 3,781 3,863
Deferred tax asset FERIBEE 29 2,609 3,361
Deposits A 22 238,078 455
Total non-current assets JEMEEERE 479,987 242 879
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =& 20 345,556 360,342
Trade receivables FEWE R 21 48,228 41,703
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIE - EZe Rk
other receivables E b fE Y 5k0E 22 23,546 24,735
Financial assets at fair value FRBERANFEYIEZ
through profit or loss SREE 23 - 23,014
Cash and cash equivalents BeERIREEED 25 288,957 336,500
Total current assets A EMBE 706,287 786,294
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and bills payables [ETE SRR R IEN R 26 36,823 33,021
Tax payable FERBEE 17,996 11,425
Other payables and accruals Eth R 5B R ERTRUA 27 97,126 64,937
Total current liabilities nBEERE 151,945 109,383
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEEE 554,342 676,911
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #AEERABERE
LIABILITIES 1,034,329 919,790
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred liabilities FEERE 28 4,155 4,838
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRIAEE 29 14,801 6,522
Other payables H bS58 27 21,136 -
Total non-current liabilities ERBaERE 40,092 11,360
Net assets BEFE 994,237 908,430
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (conmmuen)
FEMBHRE ()

31 December 2009 —ZENF+-A=+—H

2009 2008
—EEAE | —FTI)\F
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Wizt FET FET
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners KAREBA
of the Company iR
Issued capital BT 30 4,021 4,011
Reserves s 32(a) 990,216 904,419
Total equity Bl 994,237 908,430
Cheng Man Tai Cheng Pik Ho Liza
1551 BREETE
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

MOEMEER

Year ended 31 December 2009 HE-TTNF+_-_A=+—BItFE

15 ZBRABER AT F, 2009

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREEAES
Enterprise
expansion
and
Share Asset  statutory  Exchange Share
Issued  premium Contributed revaluation reserve fluctuation  Goodwill option  Retained Total Total
capital account surplus reserve funds reserve reserve reserve profits  reserves equity
HEEff LEBER  ENK® BRE
BRORT BROEER R4ES @ EEffEe wE  BEER B REEN HBEE SRR
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note 32(a)) (note 32(a)) (note 32(a))
(Hriz2) (Ari32e) (Hrizs2e)
At1 January 2009 RZZENE
-A-H 4,011 331,677 122,610 2,539 11,768 50,778 (3,168) 6,696 381,619 904,419 908,430
Proft for the year FRaH - - - - - - - - 14188 114188 114188
Exchange difierences RESEINEE
arising on translation of EEZERER
foreign operations - - - - - 1,060 - - - 1,060 1,060
Total comprehensive income  FRZEMA
for the year i - - - - - 1,060 - - 114,188 115,248 115,248
Issue of shares Fkin 30(b) 10 3,187 - - - - - (1,456) - 1,681 1,691
Equity-settled share IMEEX 2
option arrangements BRER 31 - - - - - - - 4987 - 4987 4987
Share options lapsed BRI - - - - - - - (23) 23 - -
2008 final and special SRREA
dividends declared ZZTN\E
and paid REREARE 15 - - - - - - - - (24068)  (24,068)  (24,068)
2009 interim dividend ZITNE
PHRS 15 - - - - - - - - (12,051)  (12051)  (12,051)
Transfer from retained HaRZET
profits - - - - 3,409 - - - (3,409) - -
At 31 December 2009
+ZA=1+-R 4,021 334,714 122,610 2,539 15,177 51,838 (3,168) 10,204 456,302 990,216 994,237
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY covmmue)

iroEmEEIR(g)

Year ended 31 December 2009 HE-TZTNF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAFREEAES
Enterprise
expansion
and
Share Asset  statutory  Exchange Share
Issued  premium Contributed revaluation reserve fluctuation  Goodwill option  Retained Total Total
capital account surplus reserve funds reserve reserve reserve profits  reserves equity
KEEff GXBRER  EAR® BRE
BRORE ROEER EHE8 B EERES B EEER B REEN HBEE SRR
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note 32(a)) (note 32(a)) (note 32(a))
(Witsae) (Wits2e) (Wits2e)
At 1 January 2008 RZZENE
-A-H 4,003 329,240 122,610 2,539 11,768 26,474 (3,168) 5,369 340,625 835,457 839,460
Profit for the year FRET| - - - - - - - - 71983 71983 71,983
Exchange difierences RESEINEE
arising on translation of EEZERER
foreign operations - - - - - 24,304 - - - 24,304 24,304
Total comprehensive income  FRZEMA
for the year ek - - - - - 24,304 - - 71,983 96,287 96,287
Issue of shares BT 30() 8 2,337 - - - - - (868) - 1,469 1477
Equity-settled share IMEEX 2
option arrangements BRER 31 - - - - - - - 3229 - 3229 3229
Share options lapsed BRI - - - - - - - (1,034) 1,034 - -
2007 final dividend SREZN
declared and paid ZTTHE
FERE 15 - - - - - - - - (24000)  (24000)  (24,000)
2008 interim dividend it = JjtS
HHERE 15 - - - - - - - - (8,023) (8,023) (8,023)
At 31 December 2008 RZEENE
+ZA=1+-R 4,011 331,677 122,610 2,539 11,768 50,778 (3,168) 6,696 381,619 904,419 908,430




CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n\/]_ (=) Eﬁ,i Ibiﬁé

Year ended 31 December 2009 EHZE—

TEAFT_A=+—BUIFE

ZH

FERABRAE F3, 2009

2009 2008
—EBEAF —EENF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Miat FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KEEEIBESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax [Vﬁ HlJ/ﬁJ 1 167,709 95,103
Adjustments for: TR
Finance costs mﬂﬁﬂ$ 8 - 2
Interest income FBUTA 6 (2,635) (5,673)
Depreciation e 9 21,939 23,621
Amortisation of prepaid land iﬁﬁiiﬁﬁﬁfm
lease payments s 9 82 60
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of e Wﬁﬁ%% =
property, plant and equipment NMEEEIER 2 BB 9 710 65
Write-back of impairment allowance of Rl eI & SRR
trade receivables BB RS 9 (228) (730)
Write-off of trade receivables BUEEEWE SR 9 88 968
Provision for obsolete inventories, net [ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%{% it 9 18,817 9,234
Fair value gains on financial assets NFERS - BB
at fair value through profit or loss BRI A T EYIER
ZERERE 9 (135) (283)
Changes in fair value of WEMERNTEZE
an investment property 9 (2,000) 1,000
Equity-settled share option expenses VARG HE S A5) 2 BB R el =2 31 4,987 3,229
209,334 126,596
Increase in inventories 58 i‘jJD (4,031) (73,617)
Increase in trade receivables JEUWE 5 BRFIE hn (6,385) (10,029)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, T’EH?KIE s tre M EAM
deposits and other receivables FEMRGRIBR A (38 0) 33 782 (7,766)
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at FIBEFIRAAFET B
fair value through profit or loss ZEBEERD,(3EN) 23,149 (22,731)
Increase in trade and bills payables BT E SRR RS
ESES 3,802 179
Increase in other payables and accruals H At RS FUE K
JESTFRIEIE N 33 53,325 31,205
Increase/(decrease) in deferred liabilities LB EEN G (683) 1,450
Cash generated from operations LEMSHRS 279,293 45,287
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) RE(BA)BBFIER 1,218 (2,525)
Overseas tax paid BAEINRIA (39,137) (12,145)
Net cash flows from operating activities EEERE 7B RAFRE 241,374 30,617
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B FIE 2,758 9,244
Purchases of items of property, ﬁ%ﬁ%% 5 &
plant and equipment B 17 (21,163) (59,220)
Deposit paid for acquisition of a property Hﬁﬁﬁi/iﬂﬁﬂﬁi
in Shanghai 22 (216,271) -
Deposit paid for the land use rights in U B L) 3R 4 i {5 A
Shandong BffiEe 22 (21,068) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - HE
items of property, plant and equipment NEEEE E Zﬁﬁ?g'r?ﬁ\ 195 -
Decrease in an amount due from FE Ly — R BRI A 7 2B R
a related company 13(b) - 22,400
Decrease in non-pledged time REARRIEA A
deposits with original maturity of S = A A 7 S
more than three months when acquired FEHFEFZORL 25 11,364 88,636
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEEB2BHERAN
investing activities ) #%8 (244,185) 61,060
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (conmnuep)

roRTneR(d)

Year ended 31 December 2009 HE-TZTNF+-_A=+—HILFE

2009 2008
—EThE ZEENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BisF FET FET

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RETHRERE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares IR EITRTS R 30 1,691 1,477
Dividends paid BEIRE 15 (36,119) (32,023)
Interest paid EFE - 2)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BVEEB) 2 RS FRE (34,428) (30,548)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASH HBR&RESZEY

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i, (Rd) - B (37,239) 61,129
Cash and cash equivalents FzRE R

at beginning of year ReFED 325,136 249,247
Effect of foreign exchange MEREE) 2 8 JFEE

rate changes, net 1,060 14,760
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEER

AT END OF YEAR REEEY 288,957 325,136
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERREEEWELR

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2o
Cash and bank balances & MIRTTEE R 288,957 217,585
Non-pledged time deposits with REBEARREEAR A

original maturity of less than =1ER Az mEME TR

three months when acquired - 107,551
Non-pledged time deposits with REBEARRIEB AZR

original maturity of more than =8 A Z TR E BT R

three months when acquired - 11,364
Cash and cash equivalents as stated REMBHRAREINZEE R

in the consolidated statement of REeEEY

financial position 25 288,957 336,500
Less: non-pledged time deposits with bk - RIBARRIEA AZR

original maturity of more than =& Az KR
three months when acquired TEHRTF K 25 - 11,364

Cash and cash equivalents as stated inthe #AREREXRHIIZEE M

consolidated statement of cash flows HeEEY 288,957 325,136




STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

BIFSIN AR

31 December 2009 —EENF+=-A=+—H

ZHFERBR AT FH 2009

2009 2008
—EThEF —EENEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
K FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries ARG Fa 24 669,284 708,732
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TEFIE -~ Bk
other receivables H e GRIE 22 152 148
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY 25 105,848 53,276
Total current assets MEVEERE 106,000 53,424
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Other payables and accruals EAtb fERTFRIE R
JEEtFIA 27 7,084 3,180
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 98,916 50,244
Net assets BEFE 768,200 758,976
EQUITY s
Issued capital BB TRE A 30 4,021 4,011
Reserves ] 32(b) 764,179 754,965
Total equity arEns 768,200 758,976

Cheng Man Tai
BB

Director

BE

Cheng Pik Ho Liza
(£S5
Director

EF
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NOTES TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIS R MUsE

31 December 2009 —EENF+=-A=+—H

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 29 August 2006
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961,

as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
registered office address of the Company is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, the Cayman Islands and the principal place of business
of the Company is located at 7th Floor, Wyler Centre II, 200
Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 24 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Harmonious World Limited
(“Harmonious World”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), and is considered by the directors as
the Company’s ultimate holding company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for the investment property and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars and all amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HK$’000) except where otherwise indicated.

2.1

ARER
ARARRZZEERNFNAZTNERIE
HEMEE2ERTE(—NA—FED
= iR A REF RASBS MK
BERRERAR c NARMFEMNHERE
H#bik A Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the
Cayman Islands ° fANA AR E 2 & 5
B AB AN ABARELE2005% E R
DHZH7HE -

ARFMEBEHBRATR - HBEHS
POEEE3 R R L
24 - FFPUAEEINE BRI E I WEA
28 -

7N A & A& Harmonious World Limited
([ Harmonious World ) K9 i & A &)
Harmonious World R B lE X # &
(RERZES MKy  E=RA
Harmonious World &2 7] B E 48358 A
= o

2HE%E

ZEWBRERBEBE LGRS ([EE
GEEIAE ) BEMOEBY K REER
(IEEMBERELER ) (BREMBEEH
BmEER - HFEEHER([BEGE
Al R#E)  BEAREGFRALEE
RAVEHIRBERERE - ZEFMBHRRIR
BREERAERE - HEREMEREBER
SRARFEIIRzERMEENREAF
Bt E - lRAEHEP - ZFEVHHRERIA
BILEY  MESBOREERROTT
(F#&T)



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conmmuen)

Eﬁﬁ% ﬁ%mjﬁ(mﬁ)

31 December 2009 —ZENF+-A=+—H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2009. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from

the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group

obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date

that such control ceases. All significant income, expenses
and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intercompany
transactions and intercompany balances within the Group are
eliminated on consolidation.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of
HKFRSs and HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements —

Cost of an Investment in
a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

HKFRS 2 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment
— Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations

HKFRS 7 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 7

Financial Instruments:

Disclosures — Improving
Disclosures about Financial
Instruments

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised)

2.1

2.2
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 22 ENBXRSHREEE)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKAS 18 Amendment*  Amendment to Appendix to EBesHER|
HKAS 18 Revenue F18IRIEET"

— Determining Whether
an Entity is Acting as a
Principal or as an Agent

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs BB ZED
EVRLACCT D
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments to HKAS 32 FEE @R
Amendments Financial Instruments: ERFEFT REE
Presentation and HKAS 1 S ERIE15E
Presentation of Financial B=]

Statements — Puttable
Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on

Liquidation
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 E6 (BEB B SR E
HKAS 39 Amendments  Reassessment of RELET)
Embedded Derivatives and —RRBESRR
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: EnesEs
Recognition and Measurement FER05RIEE]

— Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 5 (BB s
2EZE®)
—REE135%
HK(FRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction E76 (BEB B SR E
of Real Estate REZE®)
—RRE15%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a S5 (BB s
Foreign Operation 2REBZE®)
—REE165
HK(FRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from E6 (BEB B iSRG
Customers (adopted from 2EBZE®)

1 July 2009) —REF18H
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2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Improvements to HKFRSs Amendments to a number of

(October 2008)** HKFRSs
* Included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued
in May 2009).

> The Group adopted all the improvements to HKFRSs
issued in October 2008 except for the amendments
to HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations — Plan to sell the controlling
interest in a subsidiary, which is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact
of HKAS 1 (Revised), the adoption of these new and revised
HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements and there have been no significant
changes to the accounting policies applied in these financial
statements.

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation
and disclosures of financial statements. The revised standard
separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The
statement of changes in equity includes only details of
transactions with owners, with all non-owner changes in
equity presented as a single line. In addition, this standard
introduces the statement of comprehensive income, with

all items of income and expense recognised in profit or

loss, together with all other items of recognised income and
expense recognised directly in equity, either in one single
statement, or in two linked statements. The Group has elected
to present two statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective for
the accounting year ended 31 December 2009, in these

financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 1 Amendment

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 Amendment

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

Amendments to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Additional
Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

Amendment to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Limited Exemption
from Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

Amendments to HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment
— Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment
Transactions

Business Combinations

Financial Instruments

Related Party Disclosures

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

Amendment to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Classification of
Rights Issues
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 39 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 39
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible
Hedged ltems

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Amendments

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners

HK(FRIC)-Int 17

HK(FRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments

Amendments to HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued
Operations — Plan to Sell
the Controlling Interest in
a Subsidiary

Amendments to
HKFRS 5 included
in Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in
October 2008

Leases — Determination of the
Length of Lease Term in respect
of Hong Kong Land Leases

HK Interpretation 4
(Revised in December
2009)

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that these new and
revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the cost of the business combination over

the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’
identifiable assets, and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill arising on the
acquisition of subsidiaries is recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as an asset.

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwiill is reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.

As at the acquisition date, any goodwill acquired is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units expected to benefit from
the combination’s synergies. Impairment is determined by
assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit,
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwiill is not reversed in
a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part
of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of

in this circumstance is measured on the basis of the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Gooawill previously eliminated against the consolidated
reserves

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before 1 January 2001

was eliminated against the consolidated goodwill reserve in
the year of acquisition. The Group applied the transitional
provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted such goodwill to
remain eliminated against the consolidated goodwill reserve
and that required such goodwill not to be recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the Group disposes
of all or part of the business to which that goodwill relates or
when a cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates
becomes impaired.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest
in the Group that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or (i) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its holding company;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

® the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

Q) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets, the investment property and
goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the income statement in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting

period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill and financial assets is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the income statement in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in

progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and any impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after

items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which it

is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If
the total of the reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to
the income statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to the income statement to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits
as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life . The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the lease terms

Leasehold improvements 4.5% to 20%

Plant and machinery 10% to 20%

Furniture, fixtures and office 10% to 20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20% to 25%
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its

use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the asset

is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant assets.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment or investment
properties when completed and ready for use.

Investment property

Investment property is an interest in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment

and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” above.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
(continued)

Investment property (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of an
investment property are included in the income statement in

the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement
in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets, or

as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank balances,
trade and other receivables and quoted financial instruments.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with changes in fair value, recognised in
the income statement. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policy set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to
sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets
and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable future
significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets in rare circumstances. The reclassification
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans
and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-
maturity investments depends on the nature of the assets.
This evaluation does not affect any financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option at
designation.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance income in

the income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in finance costs.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in
active markets is determined by reference to quoted market
prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions
and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for
transaction costs. For financial instruments where there is no
active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument which is substantially the
same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing
models or other valuation models.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement;

° and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangements, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability,
the transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated

future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group

first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised
are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly

or through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in the
income statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and

in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value after making due allowances for obsolete or slow
moving items. Cost is determined on the weighted average
basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
the estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to

the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide
a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in
the cost of the leasehold land and buildings as a finance lease
in property, plant and equipment.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end

of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected

to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;
(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the

effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, where the shareholder’s right to
receive payment has been established.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conmmuen)
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
(continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as

incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products

is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the expenditure
incurred in construction cost of infrastructure project, are
recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to

an expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the
costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the income statement by
way of a reduced depreciation charge.

ZHFERBR AT FH 2009
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 31 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge

or credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market

or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,

as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified, if the original terms of award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification, that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if

it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled
transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as an
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on

a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages
of its payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension schemes.

2.4
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by

the entitles in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
All differences are taken to the income statement. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period
and their income statements are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3.

ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between leasehold land element from leasehold
land and buildings

The Group has determined that the carrying value of the land
element of the leasehold land and buildings held in Hong
Kong in relation to the value of the entire lease is insignificant
and cannot be reliably allocated. Accordingly, the leasehold
land and buildings held in Hong Kong has been treated as a
single unit and accounted for under HKAS 16 Property, plant
and equipment.

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into a commercial property lease on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of this property which is leased out on
an operating lease.

Estimation uncertainty

Estimation of fair value of an investment property

As described in note 18 to the financial statements, the
investment property was revalued at the end of the reporting
period on an open market value, existing state basis by
independent professional valuers. Such valuations were based
on certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In making the
judgement, the Group considers information from current
prices in an active market for similar properties and uses
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3.
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of share options
The fair value of options granted under share option schemes
is determined using the binomial model. The significant inputs
into the model were share price at the grant date, exercise
price, risk-free interest rate, dividend yield, expected volatility
and suboptimal exercise factor. When the actual results of
the inputs differ from the management’s estimate, it will have
impact on share option expenses and the related share option
reserve of the Company.

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION 4,

The Group’s primary operating segment is the manufacture
and sale of ladies’ brassieres, panties, swimwear and
sleepwear. Since this is the only operating segment of the
Group, no further analysis thereof is presented. In determining
the Group’s geographical information, the revenue information
is based on the location of the customers, and the total non-
current assets information, other than deferred tax asset, is
based on the location of the assets.

Mainland China Hong Kong
HE AR B
2009 2008 2009

ZEEAE | ZTT)\F | ZBBAE | =%

2008
FNF

HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 |  HK$'000

EEETHER AR @)

fhEt 2 FRBEEE)

BRI E

IRIB I IR AT 1% L O BB AR A AT X P EHR
AIEAREET - EE R AN EAR
EHBEARHBHNRE - 1TRE - £/
BAIE REE - FAHKE R FESITE
B - WAt EBENERERETEENMG
AR - Alg AR R B K
BRI R L REE -

AEBITEREDHRZEWE - A
18 KK REER 2 BUE RIHE - RLILA
REBH 2 ME—ZLDE - RAEZIHE—
T2 o REAREZRERE - I
BERVREPAEMRER - BIERE
BECEEHIREERIN ERIREEME
W AR ELHE

Others Total

At =X

2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEENE | ZZT)\F | ZBBAE | SR\
HK$'000 HK$'000 | HK$'000 HK$'000

T4 FET T#7 FAL FiET FET FET FET
Revenue from exteral NRER
customers a6 1,049,479 856,113 99,488 90,743 21,122 26,486 | 1,176,089 973,342
Non-current assets FREBE 422,998 186,265 54,380 53,253 - - 471,378 239,518
Capital expenditure incurred  FREA
during the year 553 20,986 55,095 177 190 - - 21,163 55,285

For the year ended 31 December 2009, as no customer of
the Group has individually accounted for over 10% of the
Group’s total revenue, no information about major customers is
presented under HKFRS 8.

5. REVENUE 5.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns
and trade discounts.

HE-_ZTAF+-A=1+—HBILFE
AP N S AN ER (B R P {1 AN SR [ A e 2
10% A L - MR IRIEE B B0 E £
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W za
Yas - BIAREEE 2 S558 - BNKREE
RGP NFBERELERMIBERFE -
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z
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6. HK AR WS

Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EThE —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Other income Hebg A
Bank interest income RITHBUA 2,635 5,392
Other interest income (note 13(a)(iv)) HAnF BU A (H72E13(@) ) - 281
Gross rental income He WAL 2,099 2,074
Royalty income HRREUWA 98 -
Subsidy income from the REHFEARLTE
People’s Republic of China (THEDERZ
(the “PRC") government: EREUTA
Technological innovation ey gl Fr s R
development subsidies * 454 -
Patent subsidies * EHRERE 239 56
Energy saving technology and SRR R ERES
product award fund * 227 561
Clothing and accessories fair RS I e ffh R 2 Al
subsidies * 85 -
Reinvestment tax refunds ** BIRERB - 2,852
Enterprises development fund * PEERES - 132
Others Hi 1,904 1,398
7,741 12,746
Gains Wz
Fair value gains on financial assets BRIBREARFEIEZ
at fair value though profit or loss SREENFERS 135 283
Foreign exchange differences, net EHZR - F5E (599) 6,723
Changes in fair value of an investment &£ &3 N FEE )
property (note 18) (H1:#18) 2,000 (1,000)
1,536 6,006
9,277 18,752
* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to * LA T F 2 R (E ] K 2/ 16120 3
this income. AREIE -
b According to the Income Tax Law of the PRC, the Group - RIEFEFTIFH% - AEEATRFEHE

is entitled to refund of corporate income tax, subject to
the approval from the relevant offices of the Tax Bureau
in the PRC. In prior years, the Group reinvested the profit
distributions received from its subsidiary in a new entity
established in the PRC and received approvals from the

Tax Bureau in relation to the reinvestment tax refunds. The
refunds are determined based on certain percentages of the
profit distribution reinvested in prior years.

ARSI 2 E A 1R R PTIE
BY - RABIEFE - KEEREGENE
2 FHCER 9 38 P77 IR B FT 1% B P A B
BRI 2 A - I BB
BRERP o WHRIIR BRR BT FIE
FBRE 5 P72 e & T B 7 EE
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7. OTHER EXPENSES 7. HiBix
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EThE ZEENF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAET
Charitable donation EEBI 2,336 2,635
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of & /H#itEE - MENM
property, plant and equipment REIEE 2 EE 710 65
Others EAth - 20
3,046 2,720
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. =92
Group
TEE
2009 2008
—EThE —ZETNEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank overdrafts ARAFNEE
repayable within five years ZBITIEZ 2 IR - 2
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9.

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

ZHFERBR AT FH 2009

BRBE AT A
AL BHANEFE NG, GEA) -

(crediting):

Group
TEE
2009 2008
—EEAF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE&r
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAR 234,900 208,321
Depreciation e 21,939 23,621
Amortisation of prepaid land lease AN HAE
payments FRIEZ B EE 82 60
Minimum lease payments under BRANTSIE &AL
operating leases in respect of: 2 EMAEFIA
Land and buildings T MAEF 51,273 40,940
Contingent rents of retail outlets in BERRANTER
department stores Kk AEE 287,211 243,527
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EERAFASZ (TREES
directors’ remuneration - note 10): N —m5E10) -
Wages and salaries TEKFH® 263,023 212,972
Provision/(write-back of provision) for RAERG S
long service payments Bl (BEEE) (585) 1,521
Retirement benefits scheme RNEFET S
contributions HR 20,301 16,118
Equity-settled share option expenses LA S S BB AR i R = 2,438 1,475
285,177 232,086
Auditors’ remuneration ZE M S 2,000 2,560
Advertising and counter decoration Bd MBI EE AR
expenses 66,909 82,890
Provision for obsolete inventories, net REFERE  F5E 18,817 9,234
Write-back of impairment allowance of B ol RN E P ERFORE RS
trade receivables (228) (730)
Write-off of trade receivables HsEEWE SRR 88 968
Research and development expenditure 9 R PR S 3,037 2,764
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE M E - BERERE
property, plant and equipment HE ZEE 710 65
Fair value gains on financial assets AFEWE - BB ERN
at fair value through profit or loss NEEIE 2RERE (135) (283)
Gross and net rental income S WA B KFEE (2,099) (2,074)
Changes in fair value of an investment BEMERNTELE
property (2,000) 1,000
Foreign exchange differences, net MEH =R F5 599 (6,723)
Bank interest income RITH BULA (2,635) (5,392)
Other interest income H A F S A - (281)
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance is as follows:

EEHM

REBEBBMARXZAERAA ([BM])
FEr EmRA ETRA]D) REE ARG
BIE161ER IR FRERZBNT ¢

Group
TEE
2009 2008
—EThE ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Fees we 720 720
Other emoluments: Hibg -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e R REYER
in kind 7,330 8,658
Bonuses* TE4T* 6,671 4,231
Equity-settled share option expenses  MARR#E ST+ 2 BERAS 1R ST 2,549 1,754
Retirement benefit scheme RIRAEFF B ALK
contributions 48 48
17,318 15,411
* Executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus * AREJHTEFGRIERZEAL - M

payments which are determined as a percentage of the profit
after tax of the Group.

The fair value of these share options, which has been
recognised in the income statement over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

AT BRI AL B 1R I —E B

DHETE °

PR EBAAE RS R ERNBEE &
RNHEREHBBMETE @ T ARFEME
BROESB|EA LM EEHFHHESR
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. BEHME)
2009 —EENEF
Equity-
Salaries, settled  Retirement
allowances share benefit
and benefits option scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses expenses contributions remuneration
UBRER
E =L ZERE RIER
e REWANE A Bx HEHE EF )

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET  FET  FET  FET  FET  FER

Executive directors: HITEE :
Mr. Cheng Man Tai HEHRLE - 2,146 2,220 547 12 4,925
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza HBELT L - 2,077 1,634 436 12 4,159
Madam Ngok Ming Chu ERY T - 1,835 1,882 517 12 4,246
Mr. Hung Hin Kit HLEHREE - 1,272 935 386 12 2,605
- 7,330 6,671 1,886 48 15,935
Independent non-executive B FFEITEE :
directors:
Mr. Lau Siu Ki QmEEE 240 - - 221 - 461
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung £33 240 - - 221 - 461
Prof. Lee T. S. FREYR 240 - - 221 - 461
720 - - 663 - 1,383

720 7,330 6,671 2,549 48 17,318
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. BEEEHME)
2008 ZEENF
Equity-
Salaries, settled Retirement
allowances share benefit
and benefits option scheme Total
Fees inkind Bonuses expenses  contributions  remuneration
AR & £
B 2R ZEBRiE RIKEER
we  REDR TET Fix BE G BEEMH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FHET
Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Cheng Man Tai HEHRLE - 2,639 1,377 524 12 4,552
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza LT - 2,401 1,039 321 12 3,773
Madam Ngok Ming Chu ~ E88ZR &+ - 2,237 1,089 469 12 3,807
Mr. Hung Hin Kit HLEBREE - 1,381 726 230 12 2,349
- 8,658 4,231 1,544 48 14,481
Independent non-executive B FFEITEE :
directors:
Mr. Lau Siu Ki AAELE 240 - - 70 - 310
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung £33 240 - - 70 - 310
Prof. Lee T. S. FREYR 240 - - 70 - 310
720 - - 210 - 930
720 8,658 4,231 1,754 48 15,411

There were no arrangements under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

BRMEALEE SR WEE B R RER
Fz 2k -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conmmuen)

BIRsERERMIEE ()

31 December 2009 —ZENF+-A=+—H

11.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2008: four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 10 to the financial statements above. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining one (2008: one) non-director,
highest paid employee for the year are as follows:

11.

ZHFERBR AT FH 2009

EEREHAL
FALERSFALIBENAER(ZE
TN\F  mR)  HFMEFBER L
TEMRMIFE108UM - FAEMB—BIFEF
EeFEE(Z2ZNF : —RB)HNHHEF
BT

Group

AEE
2009 2008
—EThE —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FEr
Salaries and allowances B MoREL 2,064 1,629
Equity-settled share option expenses AR #E S 1 B AR A 5 =2 192 18

Retirement benefit scheme BRIRER TR

contributions 12 12
2,268 1,659

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

BN A TR FESRRHERA
g

Number of employees

EEAH
2009 2008
—ETNEF —EE)N\F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 71,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L&
1,500,000 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ L&
2,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/87TE
2,500,000/ 7T 1 -
1 1

The fair value of these share options, which has been
recognised in the income statement over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above non-director, highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.

HRBEBHANE RS RERNEBRE - &
RNFERRH B RETE - fFARNFES
WROTBEA LIMFEERS RS WM
TWEEENA -
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12,

INCOME TAX 12, Fi8®
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% EENERMNEEBEENGEESTSBSEL
(2008: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in ZIERBEF - R165%( T NEF :
Hong Kong during the year. 16.5% ) 2 LR e 34 -
Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “New PRC BEA_ZEZENE—A—BRBERZH
Tax Law”) of the PRC being effective on 1 January 2008, BEMEFREA(THPRHFAEFIE]) @ &
the PRC income tax rate is unified to 25% for all enterprises. BT R E R A ESR —A25% °
Under an implementation guidance note of the New PRC Tax RIEFPRAAER A EmES ([ Bt
Law (the “Implementation Guidance”), enterprises established 31 - RAHmFPRBEMAEREARNKY 21
before the publication of the New PRC Tax Law were entitled EERZERBREEER T RPN ERN
to preferential treatments of a reduced corporate income tax BRE(TREMEBHR ) ZEEFE -
rate (the “CIT rate”) granted by the relevant tax authorities. CEMBHRERAIN _ZZNF—A—BH
The new CIT rate would be gradually increased from the REAERAER B SRR AFRNERHEHE
preferential rate to 25% within 5 years after the effective date HRIENNZE25% o 5B E T HARR A A]
of the New PRC Tax Law on 1 January 2008. Enterprises ZHEEEMESHRM R R R 2 XA
that are currently entitled to exemptions or reductions from BEEZARTE  BEEZETHREMS
the standard income tax rate for a fixed term may continue to 1o
enjoy such treatment until the fixed term expires.
In addition, taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been SN - Bt 5 FERR B A 2 B IB B IR AR
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in ERRKEEBER Z BRIHEETE -
which the Group operates.
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EThE —EENF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAET
Group: RER :
Current — Hong Kong BNEATEIE — B
Charge for the year FRHIA 1,010 715
Overprovision in prior years BTS2 BERE (133) -
Current — Mainland China BVEAT 18 — AR B K
Charge for the year FRFIE 43,614 21,812
Overprovision in prior years BTS2 BERE (1) (36)
Deferred (note 29) RIE(f15229) 9,031 629
Total tax charge for the year FEZBRESH 53,521 23,120
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12,

INCOME TAX (continued)

12,

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rates for the regions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

ZHFERBR AT FH 2009

FRi&Bi4#)

AR DB R EH RGO E A R M HmE 2
EEBE R AN M E 2 BIER S -
B BB R E 2 B X M E RN
™

Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EThE —EENF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAET

Profit before tax B LR A 167,709 95,103
Tax at the applicable rates to profits EEBRRBEARN G

in the countries concerned ZRERETE 2 1A 42,502 22,717
Lower tax rate for specific provinces in R KRER A (D

Mainland China BRI = (3,866) (4.565)
Lower tax rate due to tax holiday AREERM N AT R (1,355) (2,049)
Effect on opening deferred tax of T R R K ST B MR RE 7 18

decrease in rate (note 29) 2B (K F29) - (145)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of HAFFE 2 BNEiF 18

previous years Ry (134) (36)
Income not subject to tax BERB 2 WA (176) (1,570)
Expenses not deductible for tax IR 53 7,565 3,663
Effect of withholding tax at 5% and HAER 2 HENE AT

10% on the distributable profits of RIS IR AU S % & 10%

the Group’s PRC subsidiaries a2 7,850 4,200
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised RN A FEERER

in previous years HiaEsE - (126)
Tax losses not recognised REERTIAEE 1,135 1,031
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate IR ANE[E 2 BT R E

ZHmEy 53,521 23,120

122
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13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

13. HEBEALXS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere (a) PR a4 S5 0 15 SR E A 319 Pl 2 22
in these financial statements, the Group had the S50 KREBRFRNERGBEAL
following material transactions with related parties T ZEARZ ST -
during the year:
2009 2008
—EThE —EENF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Hiat FET FAET
Continuing transactions FHELS S
Purchases of furniture for MEEEARIEE
counters and shops B M s 4
from related companies pa N (i) 15,949 17,190
Rental expenses for a property @& A 72t
paid to a related company MEZHESRX (ii) 2,455 2,422
Rental expenses for a MARRESES
warehouse paid to a EEZHASMAY
director of the Company (i) 144 144
Discontinued transaction BRI S
Interest income on promissory A B3 A T EUE H,
note received from ERZMEMA
a related company (iv) - 281
Notes: Hiat -
0] The purchases of furniture for counters and shops 0] MARNE 2 —EBEZFIEH2
from related companies controlled by a son of a BN BB EEA RS 2R
director of the Company were made according to Fh R A E BB Y (R
the terms similar to those offered by the Group’s FRIRfE 2 [EHGRE - HoTT
independent suppliers. The balances owing to AFETZA=+—HRXIH
related companies as at 31 December 2009 # N A 2 #5$29,093,000/% 7T
were HK$9,093,000 (2008: HK$3,715,000) and (=ZZ)\F : 3,715,000/%8
were unsecured, interest-free and repayable in JC) TyEIRAR - B iR —
accordance with normal trading terms. The amounts R H BIEREIE - XD
have been included in the other payables and SRS B A E B (R H AR
accruals as at the end of the reporting period. < 5RIE R FEETRUE ©
(ii) The rental expenses which were paid to a related (ii) AAREEE ARG —&
company controlled by a director of the Company FOMERE T ZBED
and two sons of a director of the Company were AXfNzEeRXHIZ2EER
determined with reference to the then prevailing 2 TRETE

(i)

()

market conditions.

The rental expenses were determined with reference
to the then prevailing market conditions.

The promissory note issued by a related company
controlled by a director of the Company and two
sons of a director of the Company carried interest
which was determined after considering the
prevailing interest rates offered by commercial banks
in Hong Kong for commercial loans. The promissory
note was fully settled in March 2008.

(i)

(V)

AEHMENEEEH 2 TRE
iy

ARFEERAR

Alz—%
e %‘JZ ﬁj
*

FENE]
%%ﬁZ%RmF 1125
B ERITIE %ﬁ
TZﬂT#E ZERERZ
TNE=AEEHEHE -

Aﬂﬁﬁ\%ﬂ%
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13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

FMEERBRATE F3H 2009

13. BBEALXZ @)

(continued) (a) (#)
The above continuing transactions constitute BIE ETRAIE14AE - U EIFE
continuing connected transactions as defined in RHEKITEBFBELS -
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The directors are of the opinion that the above EERAE I GRERNANERERF
transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of RSB ELT o
business of the Group.
Disposal of subsidiaries to a related company (b) HEWBART—REEEAR
On 27 November 2007, the Group disposed of R-ZEBEEL+EFE+—HA=-++H "
certain subsidiaries to a related company controlled REBRMAANTESTLRAANFZ
by a director of the Company and two sons of a —EEMMB R TS 2
director of the Company for a total consideration of NEIHEETHERAR @ 2RE
HK$56,000,000, comprising cash of HK$33,600,000 /56,000,000 7T * BEER =
which was fully settled in December 2007 and the EELF+-_AEHBEZRS
issuance of a promissory note in the amount of 33,600,000 8 T RERZEZEN
HK$22,400,000 which was fully settled in March F=AREBEEZRITEALER
2008. 22,400,000/ 7T ©
Compensation of key management personnel of (c) REBFEESHEAS ZHH
the Group
2009 2008
—EZThE —EENF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAET
Short term employee benefits 55 EffE B 1@ F 23,333 19,749
Post-employment benefits BEE B R T 251 309
Equity-settled share option AR A 2
expenses B 3,046 2,231
Total compensation paid to key Sz F EE1#
management personnel A B 2 1B 26,630 22,289

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included
in note 10 to the financial statements.

EEFHOFERRAMBEEE
FiFE10
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14. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 14.

COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2009 includes a profit of
HK$38,665,000 (2008: HK$40,320,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company (note 32(b)).

ZNGIE PN L2l

HE-_ZZNAF+-_A=T—HLFE
RARHEE ANBIEZA S F 8 1E T
38,665,000/ 7T ( —ZFZ )\ :40,320,000
BIL)  ZERFERARA R ®RE A
FIER (MI7E32(0)) ©

15. DIVIDENDS 15. KA
2009 2008
“EThE ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TETT
Dividends paid during the year FREMNKRE
Final and special in respect of the BE_ZZN\F+_A=+—HIt
financial year ended 31 December B AR B R R AR S
2008 - HK3.0 cents and HK3.0 cents, —“%Ei%%@%sm&m
respectively, per ordinary share K308 ( ZZZNF -
(2008: final dividend of HK6.0 cents HE—-ZZ t¢+ A=+—81
per ordinary share, in respect MRFEBRE B
of the financial year ended RHARL B.6.078 10 )
31 December 2007) 24,068 24,000
Interim — HK3.0 cents (2008: AR HANG B — B EAKS.0/8 L
HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share ( ZZZT)N\F : 2.0/80) 12,051 8,023
36,119 32,023
Proposed final and special dividends ##K < 28 % 45 Bl IR 2.
Final and special — HK5.0 cents REAREFRIRLE — 2Rl A
(2008: HK3.0 cents) and B EmARS.078 L
HK2.0 cents (2008: HK3.0 cents), (ZZTNF : 3.081l) &
respectively, per ordinary share 2.0 ( ZZZN\EF : 3.0/l ) 28,159 24,068

The proposed final and special dividends for the year are
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. These financial
statements do not reflect the dividend payable.

FREIRRE RS RIS AT AR BRI
REERFASFKE LHE - ZFHER
R ARRREMBE
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16.  EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 16. FOTHEBAEGERER
OF THE COMPANY
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share BREAREERF HE T EIEAE -
are based on the following data:

Group
L]
2009 2008
—EENF —ZZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Earnings EF
Earnings for the purpose of basic and ~ FAEtEGREARLEERF ABH 2
diluted earnings per share AR (RRREAA
(profit for the year attributable to FREMSRF])
owners of the Company) 114,188 71,983
’000 000
Number of ordinary shares TEREE
Weighted average number of A BEBRERBNRENZ
ordinary shares for the purpose of AR NI #
basic earnings per share 401,463 400,989
Effect of diluted share options BERERE e 7,267 2,679
Weighted average number of R EEREEEFN SEN
ordinary shares for the purpose of AR N O£
diluted earnings per share 408,730 403,668
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17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% BERRZE
Group rEH
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor  Construction
buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
gL HENE B #ER
REF #  HEREE  BAZTRE RE HBIE @it
HK$'000 HK$7000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A7 FEr FET FE7 FET FE7 TE7
31 December 2009 “EZAEtCR=1-R
Cost: M
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-A-A 145,434 3,690 58,961 109,750 14,582 8,956 341,313
Addtions AE - - 1,233 3,310 1,058 15,562 21,163
Disposals/wite-off e /s - - (1,347 (10,721) (1475) - (13,543)
Transfers & 12,073 - - 4,613 - (16,686) -
At 31 December 2009 R-EENE
TZR=1-H 157,507 3,690 58,847 106,952 14,165 7,832 348,993
Accumulated depreciation;  E:HH7E -
At1 January 2009 RZETNE-R-A 25,435 3,690 35,268 60,961 10,799 - 136,173
Provided during the year B & 4,094 - 2,592 13,937 1,316 - 21,939
Disposals/write-off HE /i - - (1,262) (10,033) (1,343) - (12,638)
At 31 December 2009 RIZTNE
+ZA=1t-8 29,529 3,690 36,618 64,865 10,772 - 145,474
Net book value: REFE:
At31December2009  R-ZENE
TZR=1-H 127,978 - 22,229 42,087 3,393 7,832 203,519
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. Y% BERBEE)
Group rEH
Fumniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor  Construction
buldings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
i hw HENE il RER
kEF R ERREE  BOERE it fgIE &t
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET AT AT AT A7 A7 AT
31 December 2008 —Z5\Ft-F=1-H
Cost: M
At1 January 2008 RZ2EN\E-A-A 56,146 3,690 46,557 76,29 13,544 76,832 273,065
Adaltions WE - - 9,322 19,683 1,087 25,193 55,285
Write-off s - - 46) (1462) (635) - (2,143)
Transfers i 82,590 - - 10,599 - (93,189) -
Exchange realignment EX ;3% 6,698 - 3,128 4,634 586 120 15,166
At31 December 2008 R-EEN\E
+-A=t-8 145,434 3,690 58,961 109,750 14,582 8,956 341,378
Accumulated depreciation;  E:HH7E -
At 1 January 2008 RZZT\E-F-8 21,005 3,690 29976 44,849 9,251 - 108,771
Provided during the year £ 3418 - 3347 15,068 1,793 - 23621
Write-off s - - (1) (1.414) (623) - (2078)
Bxchange redignment B 8% 1017 - 2,006 2458 378 - 5859
At 31 December 2008 RZEENE
tZA=1+-H 25,435 3,690 35,288 60,961 10,799 - 136,173
Net book value: BEFE :
At31December 2008 H-ZENE
T-f=1t-8 119,999 - 23,673 48,789 3,783 8,956 205,200
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17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The Group’s leasehold land and buildings at cost included
above are held under the following lease terms:

17. Y% BERREE)
AEBRBEATHEFHESE LKA
SRz EE L REF -

Group

rEE
2009 2008
—EEThE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Medium term leases in Hong Kong REB 2 PHEELY 28,605 28,605
Short term leases outside Hong Kong BRI EIFRLY 13,919 -
Medium term leases outside Hong Kong — &F/&1E45N 2 FHIFH L) 111,964 113,810
Long term leases outside Hong Kong HEREINZ KEIFEL 3,019 3,019
157,507 145,434

At 31 December 2009, the buildings in Mainland China
included certain buildings with a net book value of
approximately HK$96,170,000 (2008: HK$86,159,000) for
which the Group is still in the process of obtaining the building
ownership certificates. These buildings are erected on land
for which the relevant land use rights certificates have been
obtained by the Group.

R_ZTZNF+_A=+—8 EFEHEKX
B EF e iEE T IRME FE496,170,000
BIL(ZFZ/)\F : 86,159,000 7T ) Ky1E
FARENEENZSEFNAMEREE
B o AEEEAZSETFTHE T HAEAE
T FRAERE -
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ZHFERBR AT FH 2009

18.  INVESTMENT PROPERTY 18. REYE
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EThE —EENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEmE 30,000 31,000
Changes in fair value (notes 6 and 9) N EZE(H6K9) 2,000 (1,000)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=Z+—HZEAE 32,000 30,000

The Group’s investment property is held under the medium
term lease and is situated at 6th Floor, Wyler Centre II, 200
Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong, as
office building.

The Group’s investment property was revalued on 31
December 2009 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, at HK$32,000,000
on an open market, existing state basis. The investment
property is leased to a third party under an operating lease,
further summary details of which are included in note 34(a) to
the financial statements.

NEE ZIREWE T AT BT 5= e
NEEF (R EBHAELBREE
2005 (& e L2 EA6kE -

AEEBZREVERBYZESERGE
MBERITERARIZEREEN-TT
hF+—A=+—BEHzZ2AMAMEL
32,000,000/ 7T ° &% E W E THIRIEA &
MOERHETFE=F - HFBERMBHRE
Bi3E34(a) °
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19.  PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 19. FEMSLHEERE
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EThE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cost: PR
At 1 January n—H—H 4,006 3,768
Exchange realignment FE 3 A% - 238
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 4,006 4,006
Amortisation: B
At 1 January n—HA—H 61 -
Recognised during the year FNFER 82 60
Exchange realignment M 5 AR - 1
At 31 December W+—-_A=+—H 143 61
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=Z+—HBZEAEE 3,863 3,945
Current portion included in STATBNFUE e K
prepayments, deposits and EfhERGRIE 2
other receivables (note 22) BNERSR D (M7aE22) (82) (82)
Non-current portion JERNERER (7 3,781 3,863

The leasehold lands are situated in Mainland China and
the respective prepaid land lease payments are held under

medium term leases.

BREE TN BEAMK - HEEN L
BRBEH AR -

A

P o

5
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20.

21.

ZHFERBR AT FH 2009

INVENTORIES 20. B®E
Group
TEE
2009 2008
—EFNE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials R 32,892 28,470
Work in progress FRE 22,091 31,806
Finished goods BURR 290,573 300,066
345,556 360,342
TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. FEREFERXR

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for wholesalers, where payment in advance

is normally required. The credit period is generally for a

period of one month, extending up to three months for major
customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables from the sales department to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

AEBETRUEEMRARTFPETE
B E-REERBBEHELNK - EFE
H—RA—EA TEEPZEEHAM
EE=(EA - AEEZHERMBEIERE 2
FEYRIR - OREEE R - B ERA
= AE IR B E BT o R B XA AR
SEZRREZERF S RZ T2 E PR
AEPA#REZ  BRAUBREEBERTZ
B o EAE BRRRAL G R o

AEERREHRBEE R 2 BWE 5 BN
RIEEHZAHZRESNTOT

Group
TEE
2009 2008
—EENF —ZZETN\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAET
Within 90 days 90HR 46,270 40,376
91 to 180 days 91£E180H 1,958 1,330
181 to 360 days 1812 360H 39 174
Over 360 days 3608 AL 74 164
48,341 42,044
Less: Impairment allowance S BB (113) (341)
48,228 41,703
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21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

At 31 December 2009, trade receivables of HK$113,000
(2008: HK$341,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
customers that were in financial difficulties and only a portion
of the receivables is expected to be recovered. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances. Movements in provision for impairment
of trade receivables are as follows:

21,

F”EH&%EEE NG
ZEENF+A=+—RH  A&KH
1IE'JFZ)£T%LA/WEE’JFHQE%EE XS
113,000/ 7t ( ZZF Z /L4 : 341,000 %
7t) ° ERIBEZ B E Z KTy E IR
BN ZFHRE - RHRTREERD
FEMERTR - REE I Btz FAEMRITAE
ﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁ%u&ﬁ@ﬁﬁméﬁh I o EUE 5
R ER BRI T

Group
TEE
2009 2008
—EEhE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January n—H—H 341 1,678
Amount written-off as uncollectible 45U [ FRIE 55 - (607)
Impairment losses ﬂ@%ﬁﬁﬁé‘ E]
written-back (note 9) (H1:#9) (228) (730)
At 31 December Rt+t—A=1+—H 113 341
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not BIERBARREZEWE ZEFRR ST
considered to be impaired is as follows: Nk
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEhE —EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Neither past due nor impaired R EA TR AR BB 46,270 40,376
1 to 3 months past due Baif1{E A =3[ A 1,958 1,327
48,228 41,703
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired RAEHARBEZEWE ZER RS

relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

MY B OB ZREFP AR -
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21.

22.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21.
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate

to a number of independent customers that have a good

track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the

directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision

for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as

there has not been a significant change in credit quality and

the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group

does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements

over these balances.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22,

ZHFERBR AT FH 2009

FEWR B 5 AR ()
BERMERREZESRUSRRTIERS F
EAEEBRRIFEECHZBITFE
B - RIBAERLSR AR EEEIRLED
REAES BABSKRDIERA 28
WE - ARBEERBBERZ ST ERIE
HRERE - AREYERZSEHTE
EHERIR R RECE 5 B IR 5

AN - RERHEMERROR

Group Company
r59 NG|
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EENE —TTNF “EENE ZTENF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
i3 FET FET FET FET
Prepaid land lease BELEE
payments oI 19 82 82 - -
Deposit paid for acquisition s HieE
of property in Shanghai Bfi%e ) 216,271 - - -
Deposit paid for the land use ik 11132 + st F 8
fights in Shandong BfiEe (i) 21,068 - - -
Deposits for acquisition of Y
items of property, S GEE
plant and equipment 2EE 739 455 - -
Prepayments B A 3,564 4,308 152 148
Deposits and other ke REM
receivables IR 19,900 20,350 - -
261,624 25,190 152 148
Current portion included BESEGESR
in prepayments, me AR
deposits and other SIEZ EVERE R
receivables (23,546) (24,735) (152) (148)
Non-current portion FEBNEREN D 238,078 455 - -

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

L ER AR ESORE - A Ll SRS
BEERSAREHROEKRFIR

&
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22.

23.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22, FEAFIE - REREMEWERIEE)

(continued)

Notes: Hiat -

0] Pursuant to an agreement entered into between a subsidiary 0] REAAR—HHNBAREBILE=
of the Company and an independent third party on 15 FRZZBZNF+A+TERBFLZH
October 2009, the Group has agreed to acquire the property HOAEEREWEMCMNRPELEESHN
located in Shanghai City, the PRC, at a consideration mE - REH AR 380,638,000 7T
of approximately RMB380,638,000 (approximately (#9433,927,000/8 70) * & H£14E1E
HK$433,927,000), which is for office and commercial MAENBERSE  HtEEEE
use with 14 floors with an estimated construction area of 11,430 F A K - ZMEDEEE
approximately 11,430 square metres. The property is still o BHERERE-ZEFNA=T
under construction and the vendor undertakes to hand Hel Z AiAANEB X EKDE - 3|
over the completed property to the Group on or before LHRE&ER BRSO AEARK
30 September 2010. At the end of the reporting period, 190,319,0007T.(47216,271,000/8 7T) °
the deposit paid was approximately RMB190,319,000
(approximately HK$216,271,000).

(ii) The deposit paid for the land use rights is the total (ii) REMFERAEEIEe AR AEE
consideration for the land with an area of 123,350 square MNRATELEEERTMEEES
metres (the “Shandong Factory Phase 2”) adjacent to the 123,350 F F AR Z L ([IUERBE =
land of the Group’s factory located in Jinan City, Shandong B ) 24818 -
province, the PRC.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT  23. EBEXREUATEIEZSREE

OR LOSS

Group

rEE
2009 2008
—EENF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET

Quoted investment in the ERBEZEE

PRC, at fair value BAFERE - 23,014

The above investment at 31 December 2008 was classified
as held for trading upon inital recognition, designated by the

Group as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

R-FENF+-A=+—ALARESE
NSRRBBEBHFER - AREIET
HABBBEEURTEIEL SBE

BE o
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24. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

24. RHELRzER

Company
N
2009 2008
—BBNE BT NG
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted investments, at cost FELEMIRE - R 381,448 381,448
Due from subsidiaries R NG 288,161 327,609
Due to a subsidiary FEN —FM B A BI5RIE (325) (325)
669,284 708,732

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and not expected to be settled within the next twelve months

HI=FN

RSB REEN - R RBHBA

R¥REREAE AR RR12(E A "E

from the end of the reporting period. fF o
Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: MEARIKBLT -
Issued
Place of and fully Percentage
incorporation/ paid share/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations capital the Company activities
ERTR NG|
FMAL/ERK BERH/ 3 4
£ ey aMER Bat TEER
2009 2008
ZBENF —EENE
Concepts Paris (HK) Limited? Hong Kong HK$100 100 Provision of design and consulting
HRBER(FE)ERAR 54 100/87C services
R RET R AR
Embry Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 Investment holding
ZRFTMER AR i 10087 REER
Embry (Changzhou) Garments PRC/ RMB23,900,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
Ltd. (‘Embry CZ”)** Mainland A K#23,900,0007T ladies’ brassieres, panties,
ZHRE (BN RERRD China swimwear and sleepwear
(TRFHEEM ) HE/ HWERBELIENE - N
MBI AR KA R
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24.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

24. RHBRFzER )
MBARMEOT - (4)

Issued
Place of and fully Percentage
incorporation/ paid share/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations capital the Company activities
ERTR ARQH
FRARL/ FRE HERH/ it
a2 Kenl aER ARl TEER
2009 2008
“EEAE ZEENE
Embry (China) Garments Ltd. PRC/ HK$11,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
(‘Embry SZ') Mainland 11,000,000/ 7T ladies’ brassieres, panties,
T (PE)REER AR China swimwear and slespwear
(TRFHE R mE/ HERBELILNE - NiE
REIARE KR KR
Embry (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Trading of ladies’ brassieres,
(“Embry HK") B HK$45,000 panties, swimwear and
ZHF (BB BRAR *Non-voting slespwear
(IRFAEE]) deferred BEXRILHE - -
HK$4,500,000 KR RER
LiEk
45,0007C
ERRIE
IR
4,500,000/ 7T
Embry (Macau) Fashion Macau MOP100,000 100 100 Trading of ladies’ brassieres,
Company Limited B 100,0001R 9% panties, swimwear and
(Embry (Macau) sleepwear
Pronto A Vestrr, Limitada) BENIME - A -
KR R
Embry (Shandong) Garments PRC/ US$10,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of ladies’
Limited (‘Embry SD")™ Mainland 10,000,000 7T brassieres, panties,
ZHF (LR RFEBRAR China swimwear and
([ Z=7FIL® )~ e/ sleepwear
HEIRE HEREERNE
AfE KK RER
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24. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

FMEERBRATE FH 2009

24. RHBRFzHER )
MBARMEOT - (4)

Issued
Place of and fully Percentage
incorporation/ paid share/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations capital the Company activities
ERTR AAH
FRARL, TRE HRRH/ b
£ - aHER Bl TEXS
2009 2008
ZBENF —EENE
Embry (Shanghai) Trading Company PRC/ HK$1,000,000 100 - Design, research and development
Limited (‘Embry SH")*+ Mainland 1,000,000/ 7T and trading of ladies’ brassieres,
ZRF (LB ESERAR China panties, swimwear and sleepwear
(TRF5 Lig ) mE/ HE MR REREELIMNE -
HEIAE AP KK RER
Embry Garments Limited BVI US$1 100 100 Investment holding
EBRUEE 1ET REEK
Embry Group Limited (‘EGL”) BVI US$472 100 100 Investment holding
EBRUES 4723ETT REER
Embry International Limited* BVI US$1 100 Investment holding
ZRRERERAF EBRUEE 1ETT REEK
Gallin Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
HEREBRATA ) 28T REER
Prime Force Hong Kong HK$20 100 100 Property investment
Advertising Limited 6 2087 NERE
Whistleblower Limited BVI US$1 100 100 Holding of trademarks
EBRUES v HRER
# Newly incorporated during the year. # FRRFTAAML L
* The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to * 10 22 42 30 A IR A0 A B AR R Y R AR

dividends (other than for any financial year during which

the net profit of Embry HK available for dividend exceeds
HK$1,000,000,000,000), no rights to vote at general meetings
and no rights to receive any surplus in return of capital in a
winding-up in respect of the first HK$500,000,000,000,000.

* Embry CZ, Embry SZ, Embry SD and Embry SH are
registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the
PRC law.

Except for EGL, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held
by the Company.

ok

B (REHF &8 o] R B B4t F 815
1,000,000,000,000,% T 4 (F 1] 87 B FF
BN - RIREA S FI8ERIKEE
B ¢ B B3 500,000,000,000,000% 7 iR
EIE LAY E R

ZHIFEN ~ LRFFY - LHFULE
RZHF RGP B O AE
SNEREE -

BREGLSN » LUl BB AR AR
BEE
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25.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. HERELZEY
Group Company
AEH AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAF ZEENF —EBEAF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEr FET FEr
Cash and bank balances Re RIRT TR 288,957 217,585 105,848 53,276
Time deposits with original 7B AR RZIEAR
maturity of less than R=TANZ
three months when TEHFER
acquired - 107,551 - -
Time deposits with original ~ FABE AR REIHAR
maturity of more than BENR=EAZ
three months when EHFER
acquired - 11,364 - -
288,957 336,500 105,848 53,276
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank AEBARREPFHEEAUARE

balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to HK$163,228,000 (2008: HK$164,911,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

(TAR®])
/5 163,228,000 & JT
164,911,000/ 7T ) °
HREMEE
EIRIEP) -
T AEEE

EZHEES RBITES

—EENF
ARE R
HER R E AR 2 SN
NRBE - EERNEEEE

A AH

BB EREETTINER 5
EBZRIBARBLBAEME -

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made

for approximately one week on average depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest
at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

RITFFRESARITEFRNEEE 2T
BN S o A ME R AR —
Ef RFAEEERZREFRME
jﬁﬁﬁf‘%ZEH}%EHﬁf%ﬂ%‘Hﬁg o $R1T

FEER NOE B S U A BRI BB K0 RO 8
ZE%E&%&TT °
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26.

27.

ZH

FERABRAE F3, 2009

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 26. ERESZRIRENRE
An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables as at AREFBNREHAREE A ZEMNESER
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as REMNZEEEEXZRH 2 EH TN
follows: N
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EThE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within 90 days 90HIN 33,759 27,517
91 to 180 days 912180H 1,787 1,938
181 to 360 days 181£360H 312 764
Over 360 days 360H LA 965 2,802
36,823 33,021
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally FERTE S BRFALTFE - —HH80E90H
settled on 30 to 90 days terms. NEES o
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. HttEAREREGTRE
Group Company
AEE NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEhE —ETNF —EZhEF —ZETNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET
Other payables Hip et zoa 61,196 24,898 - -
Accruals FEstEIE 57,066 40,039 7,084 3,180
118,262 64,937 7,084 3,180
Current portion included &t A H Ab fE (<
in other payables and FIB K FERTRIA
accruals &) BN EREL (97,126) (64,937) (7,084) (3,180)
Non-current portion JEBNEAER (7 21,136 - - -
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27.

28.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued) 27. HtbENARUERESRIEE)
Other payables of the Group at 31 December 2009 included REBR -_ZEZNF+_A=+—HzH
a subsidy of RMB18,600,000 (approximately HK$21,136,000) MEMEFBEATRILEEEETAR
(2008: Nil) received from the People’s Government of Jinan, BFWEEAEER LEME —HER
Shandong Province, the PRC, for the construction cost MELEERREEEX RN 2 mBALAARE
of basic infrastructure to be incurred by the Group for the 18,600,0007T, ( #921,136,000/7T ) ( —
Shandong Factory Phase 2 development. EENE:T) o
Other payables of the Group also included an amount of R-BZNF+_A=+—HAEBRE
HK$9,093,000 due to related companies as at 31 December o FE N IR B R y& 1—1‘ FAE N T Z A
2009 (2008: HK$3,715,000). The balances were unsecured, 9,093,000/ 7t (== Z /A : 3,715,000
interest-free and repayable in accordance with normal trading BIL) c ZEEHBAEET 2R REIR
terms. —REEKREE -
Other than the above, the remaining balance of other payables B Fat & 5N - HegH A 08 AT
are non-interest-bearing. B o
DEFERRED LIABILITIES 28. EEAE
Deferred liabilities represent the estimated provision in respect BB BEEERESHHEENERER
of long service payments which may become payable in RAEE 2 (hetEE - REIRBEESATEAER
the future under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance to BEEBERIENIZEENANEEB ZFEM
employees in proportion to their periods of services with the AfES Xt o
Group up to the end of the reporting period.
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EENF ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$000
FETT FET
At 1 January A—H—H 4,838 3,388
Provision/(write-back of provision) for & 7 &t /(B E)
the year (note 9) (H1a29) (585) 1,521
Payments during the year FEZHAR (98) (71)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—8H 4,155 4,838
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ZHFERBR AT FH 2009

29. DEFERRED TAX 29. ERERIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and asset during the FEXNEERBEELEESES WO -
year are as follows:
Group REE
Withholding
Depreciation taxes on
allowance in undistributed
excess of Unrealised profits on
Revaluation of related profit of PRC
aproperty depreciation inventories  subsidiaries Total
HERRH FEHBAT
Fiatizl AEE  ROWENZ
MEE R E FEER ik @
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2008 RZTZ\F—F—H 1,575 957 - - 2,532
Effect on opening deferred tax T & A $THA B LR E
of decrease in rate (note 12) T2 (W12) (90) (55) - - (145)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FREWEEZNG
to the income statement (HR)ZELHE
during the year (note 12) (Hiz#12) (165) 100 (3,361) 4,200 774
At 31 December 2008 and RZZENF
1 January 2009 +ZA=+—-HBRk
—ZENF-A-H 1,320 1,002 (3,361) 4,200 3,161
Deferred tax charged to the FRNERER
income statement during Mk 2 BB
the year (note 12) (Hiz#12) 330 99 752 7,850 9,031
At 31 December 2009 RZTENF
+-A=+—H 1,650 1,101 (2,609) 12,050 12,192

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the

Group for financial reporting purposes:

AT RASBEBE SRR 5 BTN A
REERDHT

2009 2008
—EBEAF —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Deferred tax asset recognised in RERE R RERZ
the consolidated statement of RIETRIBE E
financial position (2,609) (3,361)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in RERE RN R FER
the consolidated statement of RIEFIBAE
financial position 14,801 6,522
12,192 3,161
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29.

30.

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29, EERIEE)
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of N & REBELA Z2HMBEBY
approximately HK$17,298,000 (2008: HK$10,567,000) that 17,298,000/ 70 ( —ZZEZF )\ : 10,567,000
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable BoT) AR EEAEBE AT ZER
profits of the company in which the losses arose. Deferred tax WER A - ARZEEBE KA
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as EEE-BERZNB AR AR A0 8
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making TR SN HEAHRIEER - )
for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable Wi % R EERIBEE
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% BIEPEMEMRERE - RPN 2
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign BOERINRIREE TR 2 IR E BB N
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established 10% 2 T8 - BERTER-_ZEZEN\F—
in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January A—HEER  BEAR-ZEZLF+=
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A B=1+—B%2Z2E8F o {4 B ApEEEINEH
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax WEEMBRIEER I ERBEEL - 8@
treaty between Mainland China and jurisdiction of the foreign AZENBRBREAGERK - tAEEM
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and AT R AB5% KR10% © B I - $%
10%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on ,/\,ﬁytﬁﬁ/\qﬂ B 2B ARG —EE
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in the NF—A—BRBELSZAEND IR 2RSS
PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. NTEFFL ©
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the RN T ) EL R B S AR BB 4 B S 4 (] BT
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. EHEEER -
SHARE CAPITAL 30. mBF
2009 2008
—EEhE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Authorised: JETE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000/% &%
HK$0.01 each EE0.018 7T r) & AR 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
402,148,000 (2008: 401,130,500) 402,148,0000% (=T )\4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 401,130,5000% ) X &
0.018 TR & Bk 4,021 4,011
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30.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

A summary of the transactions during the year with reference

30. RAE#E)
FARERARREETRAZEHR 2

to the above movements in the Company’s issued share TEHMENT
capital is as follows:
Number of Nominal
ordinary value of
shares of ordinary
HK$0.01 each shares
EREE0.01
BTHEEREE ZEREE
Notes HK$'000
Hiat FEIT
Authorised: EIE
As at 31 December 2008 and RZZZENF
31 December 2009 +-—A=+—HK
—ZETNF
+-—A=+—H 1,000,000,000 10,000
Issued: BT
As at 1 January 2008 WZTTNF
—H—H 400,314,500 4,003
Share options exercised AT RS AR AE (@) 816,000 8
As at 31 December 2008 RZTE)\F
+=A=+—8 401,130,500 4,011
Share options exercised BT AR A (b) 1,017,500 10
As at 31 December 2009 RZZEZNF
+=-—HBA=+—H 402,148,000 4,021
Notes: Hiat -
() During the year ended 31 December 2008, the subscription (a) BE_TZN\F+A=+—HLHF
rights attaching to 816,000 share options were exercised B RRBESRKRM1.81BTITE
at the subscription price of HK$1.81 per share (note 31), at 816,000 17 i AR 4 2 AT MY 32 B 8 (B
a consideration of approximately HK$1,477,000, of which 31) - R{EH1,477,00087C » HA
HK$8,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of 8,000/ L5 BR R AR AN - 1,469,000/
HK$1,469,000 was credited to the share premium account. TCZ EEARBIPIARR D S BER o & BEARHE
An amount of HK$868,000 has been transferred from the TEAT(ERE - 868,000 7T £ i AR 48 (7 1
share option reserve to the share premium account when the ERERMDRER -
options were exercised.
(b) During the year ended 31 December 2009, the subscription (o) BE_TZNF+A=+—HLHF

rights attaching to 597,500 and 420,000 share options
were exercised at the subscription price of HK$1.81 and
HK$1.45 per share, respectively (note 31), resulting in the
issue of 1,017,500 shares of HK$0.10 each at a total cash
consideration of approximately HK$1,691,000, of which

HK$10,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of
HK$1,681,000 was credited to the share premium account.
An amount of HK$1,456,000 has been transferred from the
share option reserve to the share premium account when the

options were exercised.

B D RRREEFRRG1.81ET
%1.457% 7017 597,500 1% & 420,000
D IERRHE 2 A R BB #E (P EST) - &
HEE171,017,5000% A E{E0.10/8 7T
Z By - 43R & R {E 41,691,000
JL + H 10,0008 L5 R AR A ¢
1,681,000/%8 70 2 & 54 BI S A1 3 (B
IR o HIERRAEREITERS © 1,456,000/
TTHBREFEERZERMAER -
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a pre-initial public offering

share option scheme on 25 November 2006 (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) and a share option scheme on 18
December 2006 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Eligible participants of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
include (i) any employee (whether full time or part time,
including directors) of the Company, its subsidiaries or
invested entity; (i) any directors or proposed directors
(including independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, its subsidiaries or invested entity; (i) any advisor
(professional or otherwise), consultant, individual or entity
who is in the opinion of the directors of the Company has
contributed or will contribute to the growth and development
of the Group and the listing of the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange; and (iv) any company wholly-owned
by one or more eligible participants as referred to in (i) to (iii)
above.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Pre-IPO

Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”) may be
accepted not later than the earlier of 21 days from the date

of offer or 28 November 2006, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the Pre-IPO Share Options is determinable by the
directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the Pre-IPO Share Options, and ends on a date which
is not later than ten years from the date of the offer of the Pre-
IPO Share Options or the expiry date of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the Pre-IPO Share Options is
determinable by the directors, but shall not be less than the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

There is no individual limit under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme. No further option can be granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 31.
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
Pre-IPO Share Options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Set out below are the outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options as

ZHFERBR AT FH 2009

fBREST 8 ()

BRAMBENBRESS(H)
BRAFEENBEREY TR THRA AR

B BN RA® LI EAIRER) -

ATE#IR —ZFFNF T+ —A=+—HH

N EERIBRE :

at 31 December 2009: RITEE R
Number of share options
EhesR
Cancelled Exercise
At Granted  orlapsed  Exercised At31 price of
Name or 1 January during during during  December Date of grant of Exercise period of share
category of participant 2009 the year the year the year 2009 share options share options*  options*
HKS
per share
SRS N-BENF ERitH R-EENF e BhE EhE
ZEH -f-B EARE xR EREARToAZt-A REAH kg ARE"
hET
Executive directors
#g2
Mr. Cheng Man Tai 655,000 - - (218500) 436,500 25 November 2006 18 December 2007 to 181
17 December 2011
it TEENET-ACTER CEBLETCATRE
ZE-ErZAttR
Ms. Cheng Pk Ho Liza 375,000 - - (125,000 250,000 25 November 2006 18 December 2007 to 181
17 December 2011
gEbT TEENET-ACTER CEELETCATNRE
ZE-ErZAttR
Madam Ngok Ming Chu 580,000 - - (193,500) 386,500 25 November 2006 18 December 2007 to 181
17 December 2011
ERGLL TEENET-ACTER CEBEETCATNRE
ZEErZAttR
Mr. Hung Hin Kit 249,000 - - - 249,000 25 November 2006 18 December 2007 to 181
17 December 2011
HES TEENET-ACTER CEERLETCATNRE

ZEErZAttR
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 31. BRESTE(E)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) BRABRENBIRESEE)
Set out below are the outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options as UTEIWR - EZAF+_A=1+—8%
at 31 December 2009: (continued) RITEERAFRERERRRE - (&)
Number of share options
EREgE
Cancelled Exercise
At Granted  orlapsed  Exercised At31 price of
Name or 1 January during during during  December Date of grant of Exercise period of share
category of participant 2009 the year the year the year 2009 share options share options* ~ options**
HKS
per share
SRS N-BENF ERitH R-EENF e BhE EhE
ZEH -f-B EARE xR EREARToAZt-A REAH kg ARE"
ShEn
Independent non-executive directors
MBI
Mr. Lau SuKi 68,000 - - - 68,000 25 November 2006 18 December 2007 to 181
17 December 2011
YEnk TEENET-ACTER CEERLETCATNRE
ZE-ErZAttR
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 68,000 - - - 68,000 25 November 2006 18 December 2007 to 181
17 December 2011
32 TEENET-ACTER CEELETCATNRE
ZE-ETCATHA
Prof Lee T.S. 68,000 - - - 68,000 25 November 2006 18 December 2007 to 181
17 December 2011
FREAR TEENET-ACTER CEBREETCATNRE
ZEErZAttR
Other employees
-0
In aggregate 1,796,000 - (18,000) (60500) 1,717,500 25 November 2006 18 December 2007 to 181
17 December 2011
h) TEENET-ACTER CEERLETCATARE
ZE-ErZAteR
3,859,000 - (18000)  (597500) 3,243,500
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes to the reconciliation of the Pre-IPO Share Options
outstanding during the year:

*

The Pre-IPO Share Options are vested to the grantees in the
following manner:

- 25% of such options were vested on 18 December 2007 with
an exercise period from 18 December 2007 to 17 December
2011;

- 25% of such options were vested on 18 December 2008 with
an exercise period from 18 December 2008 to 17 December
2011;

- 25% of such options were vested on 18 December 2009 with
an exercise period from 18 December 2009 to 17 December
2011; and

- the remaining 25% of such options will be vested on 18
December 2010 with an exercise period from 18 December
2010 to 17 December 2011.

* The exercise price of each of the Pre-IPO Share Options per
share is 50% of the final offer price of HK$3.62 and is subject
to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The fair value of the Pre-IPO Share Options granted

during the year ended 31 December 2006 was estimated

at approximately HK$13,525,000 (HK$2.08 each) of

which the Company recognised share option expenses

of HK$1,422,000, HK$2,636,000, HK$6,225,000 and
HK$584,000 for the years ended 31 December 2009, 2008,
2007 and 2006, respectively.

At as 31 December 2009, the equity-settled option expenses
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of HK$2,658,000
had not been recognised in the income statement.

31.
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* EHERAFEENERENTERES
AR E(ES.62/BTTM50% « T EIMH
BEBRAT RS ~ 8RR RIRG A AR HoAtb JE L s

BRE -

HE_ZZAF+-_A=1t—HBIFEH
B ERXARBEERERENDFER
5149 413,525,000 7T (& 17 B AL #E2.08
BIL)  ERARRREBEEZZTTNAF -
ZZEENF ZETLEFERZTTARF
T A=+ BLFEEREREMS
2 Bl A1,422,0007 7T + 2,636,000/ 7T
6,225,000/ 7T %584,000/ 7T ©

RZZEAFE+-A=+—8  WHERY
FERUABRD T 2 B8R AFREERTER
HERT B T EERR R 322,658,000/ 7T ©

148



149

Embry Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conmmuen)

BIRsERER M ()

31 December 2009 —ZENF+-A=+—H

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The fair value of the Pre-IPO Share Options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2006 was estimated as at the
date of grant, using a binomial model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) 0
Expected volatility (%) 49
Risk-free interest rate (%) 3.8
Suboptimal exercise factor (times) 3

The suboptimal exercise factor is based on the directors’
estimation and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

Share Option Scheme

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include,

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time, including
directors but excluding any non-executive director) of the
Company, its subsidiaries or invested entity; (i) any non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, its subsidiaries or invested entity; (iii)
any supplier or customer of the Group or any invested entity;
(iv) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any invested
entity; (v) any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any invested entity or any holder of any securities issued

by any member of the Group or any invested entity; (vi) any
advisor (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area
of business or business development of the Group or any
invested entity; (vii) any other group or classes of participants
who have contributed or may contribute by way of joint
venture, business alliance or other business arrangement

to the development and growth of the Group; and (viii) any
company wholly-owned by one or more eligible participants
as referred in to (i) to (vii) above. The Share Option Scheme
became effective on 18 December 2006 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a
period of ten years to 17 December 2016.
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HE-_ZTXRF+T-_A=T—HILFEE
2 BRAFEERBREN R FETIE
AZIEARAR RN B EETEE - X2
RSB L RO RGN - T
Ry & AREARET AIRE

% 2 (%) 0
TEHAIR 08 (%) 49
S BB 2K (%) 3.8
RPITEBREER(E) 3

RETEBRERZASRBEERMGE
FE v W —EREIE R AT RE R BT (E AR
2 - TRHR IR R RERE LR IE BB R
KBLHIERER » TRAl e HERART
7 o

SHE A TR\ (B PR
EREEL o

B RETE
BRESINAER2HEERENAR
A - EMEARATIRE QBRI 25
S ERBES(BRIEES - BNMEEERFE
HWITER)  (iIVARF - HBRRAT
HERANEMIFNTES (BB I
HITES) (i) ANEEEAKE 2RI
RERNFNEAHERSER  (WEAA
REE SR E R R - FE
SHMPM S EAEAS AT (VAEE
EfRIA B A RIS ATIRE A Bl MR AR =X
REEEAIKE QB RATEE AR FTEETT
ERBEEFA A (Vi)REB ST A%
BARREEMESHERESEREMNETE
s E b AR A SRR ¢ (Vi) B AT B A] RE#E
RS - EBE R E MR B
REER R L REHERBER EAtL
RS EE - R(vil)B _ERE)E (Vi) BAT
MM —EZHEREER2HERERRFN
ERIAT - BREAESIR ST F+=
AT\BRAEN - BRIFFTHESEE - &
BlER S+ FEFE T —RNF+ A
++R8-



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conmmuen)

BIRsERER M ()

31 December 2009 —ZENF+-A=+—H

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject

to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. Share
options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company.

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with an

aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s

shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not
later than ten years from the date of the offer of the share
options or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme, if
earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the
offer of the share options; (i) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (jii) the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 31.
Share Option Scheme (continued)
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Set out below are the outstanding share options under the
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2009:

fBREST 8 ()

BT E()

BB W T R A AR B 3R
BRERAE LIRE -

UATEIR -—FTNF+ _A=+—HH
Pt 81T i RTT R AAE

Number of share options
EhesR
Cancelled Exercise
Name or At Granted  orlapsed  Exercised At31 price of
category of participant 1 January during during during  December Date of grant of Exercise period of share
2009 the year the year the year 2009 share options share options* options
HKS
per share
SRS R-BENF ERiH R-EENF e BhE EhE
ZEH -A-B EARE EN  FREHR t=A=T-B REAH i fikE
777
Executive directors
#g2
Mr. Cheng Man Tai 1,000,000 - - - 1,000000 5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to 145
4 November 2012
gyt ERN\Et-ARER ZEEAET-FRAZ
ZB-CHT-ARA
Ms. Cheng Pk Ho Liza 1,000,000 - - - 1,000000 5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to 145
4 November 2012
e “EE\Et-AREA CEENET-AEAE
B-CHT-ARA
Madam Ngok Ming Chu 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to 145
4 November 2012
ERGLL “5F)\ET-ARR ZEENET-REAR
B-CHT-ARA
Mr. Hung Hin Kit 1,000,000 - - - 1,000000 5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to 145
4 November 2012
HES ZBE\Et-AREA ZEENET-ARAE

“F-E+-fEA
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31.

ZHFERBR AT FH 2009

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 31. BRESTE(E)
Share Option Scheme (continued) B EE(E)
Set out below are the outstanding share options under the UTEHIAZZETNFE+_A=1+—HEE
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2009: (continued) PRAEET B TN R TS ARHE - (&)
Number of share options
EREgE
Cancelled Exercise
Name or At Granted  orlapsed  Exercised At31 price of
category of participant 1 January during during during  December Date of grant of Exercise period of share
2009 the year the year the year 2009 share options share options* options
HKS
per share
SRS N-EENF Ehits R-EENF e BhE EhE
ZEH -A-B EARE IxN  ERCARToA=t-A REAH i kB
ShEn
Independent non-executive directors
BudyrEs
Mr. Lau SuKi 700,000 - - - 700,000 5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to 145
4 November 2012
Y ZEBE\Et-ARER CEEAET-AEAE
ZE-ZEt-ArA
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 700,000 - - - 700,000 5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to 145
4 November 2012
32 “ERN\Et+-ARER ZEEAET-FRAZ
B-CHT-ARA
Prof. Lee T.S. 700,000 - - - 700,000 5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to 145
4 November 2012
FREAR ERN\Et-ARER ZEEAET-FRAZ
B-CHT-ARA
Other employees
-0
In aggregate 6,600,000 - - (420,000) 6,180,000 5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to 145
4 November 2012
) “5R)\ET-ARR ZEENET-REAR
“B-CHT-ARA
12,700,000 - - (420000) 12,280,000
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes to the reconciliation of share options under the Share
Option Scheme outstanding during the year:

*

The share options are vested to the grantees in the following
manner:

- 30% of such options were vested on 5 November
2009 with an exercise period from 5 November 2009
to 4 November 2012;

- 30% of such options will be vested on 5 November
2010 with an exercise period from 5 November 2010
to 4 November 2012; and

- the remaining 40% of such options will be vested on
5 November 2011 with an exercise period from 5
November 2011 to 4 November 2012.

The fair value of the share options under the Share Option
Scheme granted during the year ended 31 December 2009
was estimated at approximately HK$6,664,000 (HK$0.52
each) of which the Company recognised share option
expenses of HK$3,565,000 and HK$593,000 during the years
ended 31 December 2009 and 2008.

As at 31 December 2009, the equity-settled option expense
of HK$2,506,000 under the Share Option Scheme had not
been recognised in the income statement.
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 31.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The fair value of the share options under the Share Option
Scheme granted during the year ended 31 December 2008
was estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to
the model used:

Dividend yield (%) 3
Expected volatility (%) 55
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.8
Expected life of option (year) 4
Exit rate — director (%) 0
Exit rate — staff except director (%) 15
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 1.45

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcome. The exit rate is based
on the historical data on staff/director turnover rates.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

ZHFERBR AT FH 2009

fBREST 8 ()
BT E()

(EZET N\FF A=+ —HIEFER
IR BIR L 2 BREN A HETE
AZIEARAR RN B EETEE - X2
RSB L RO RGN - T
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2 R (%) 3
T8 HAR 18 (%) 55
R B T (%) 1.8
BAETRHAF A (F) 4
R E - E(%) 0
RHE-BREEINE T (%) 15
NI R E (FRE T) 1.45
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 31. BRESTE(E)
The following share options were outstanding under the Pre- U TNARERERAREE I EIRETZ
IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option Scheme N B REST 2B T M R TR ayBE IR AE -
during the year:
2009 2008
ZEEBAF ZEE)N\F
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options | exercise price of options
HK$ HK$
per share per share
IR AT
TEE BREHE 1158 FERERE
ZKRET BRET
At 1 January »n—H—H 1.53 16,559,000 1.81 5,753,500
Granted during the year FRREH - - 1.45 12,700,000
Exercised during the year FRTE 1.66 (1,017,500) 1.81 (816,000)
Cancelled or lapsed FRFEERAR
during the year 1.81 (18,000) 1.81 (1,078,500)
At 31 December wt+-—A=+—8H 1.53 15,523,500 1.53 16,559,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$3.08 per
share.

The 1,017,500 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 1,017,500 ordinary shares of the
Company and new share capital of HK$10,000 and share
premium account of HK$1,681,000 (before issue expenses),
as further detailed in notes 30 and 32(b) to the financial
statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
15,528,500 share options outstanding under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and the Share Option Scheme. The
exercise in full of the share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
15,523,500 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$155,000 and share premium
account of HK$23,522,000 (before issue expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period and at the
date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 14,903,500 share options outstanding under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 3.70% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at that date.
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32. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents (i)
the excess of the nominal value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation
of certain members of the Group which took place
on 31 December 1992, over the nominal value of
EGL’s shares issued in exchange therefor; (i) the
premium arising from the share issues by EGL for
settlement of the amount due to the ultimate holding
company of HK$15,841,000; (i) the premium
arising from the acquisition of Embry HK from the
minority shareholders of HK$5,000,000; and (iv)

the excess of the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor
and the then existing 10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each credited as fully paid at par.

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable
in the PRC, subsidiaries of the Company established
in the PRC are required to transfer a certain
percentage of their profits after tax, if any, to the
enterprise expansion and statutory reserve funds,
which are non-distributable, before profit distributions
to shareholders. The amounts of the transfers are
subject to the approval of the board of directors of
these subsidiaries.

The Group applied the transitional provision of HKFRS
3 which permits goodwill in respect of acquisitions
which occurred prior to 1 January 2001, to remain
eliminated against the consolidated reserves. The
amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated
reserves, arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries
prior to 1 January 2001, was stated at cost, which
amounted to HK$3,168,000 as at 31 December 2009
(2008: HK$3,168,000).
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RESERVES (continued) 32. f#E#E)
Company (b) PN
Share Share
premium Contributed option  Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total
RiEER ESES% BRERE RERF @zt
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
ki FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2008 RZTE\F—H—A 329,240 381,248 5,369 26,113 741,970
Profit for the year FEHF - - - 40,320 40,320
Total comprehensive FREEUNEE
income for the year - - - 40,320 40,320
Issue of shares BIRG 30(a) 2,337 - (868) - 1,469
Equity-settled share BT
option arrangements B 31 - - 3,229 - 3,229
Share options lapsed BIRER N - - (1,034) 1,034 -
2007 final dividend EEREFZETLE
declared and paid RERE 15 - - - (24,000)  (24,000)
2008 interim dividend ZETN\FRERE 15 - - - (8,023) (8,023)
At 31 December 2008 R-ZENF
and 1 January 2009 +-A=1—H
k=ZENF—F—H 331,577 381,248 6,696 35,444 754,965
Profit for the year FERREF - - - 38,665 38,665
Total comprehensive FRZERNEE
income for the year - - - 38,665 38,665
Issue of shares BIRM 30(b) 3,137 - (1,456) - 1,681
Equity-settled share BRI
option arrangements ERELH 31 - - 4,987 - 4,987
Share options lapsed BRERN - - (23) 23 -
2008 final and special ERLRENZZTNE
dividends declared RERERIRE
and paid 15 - - - (24,068)  (24,068)
2009 interim dividend ZETHERERE 15 - - - (12051)  (12,051)
At 31 December 2009 RIEEAF+-A=1—-H 334,714 381,248 10,204 38,013 764,179
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32. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Company (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the excess of the then net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company pursuant to the group
reorganisation, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor
and the then existing 10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each credited as fully paid at par.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for share-
based payment transactions in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to
the share premium account when the related options
are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits
should the related options expire or be forfeited.

33. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS
Major non-cash transactions
Pursuant to the agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”)
entered into between a subsidiary of the Company and the
People’s Government of Zhanggiu, Shandong Province, the
PRC (the “Zhanggiu Government”) on 28 December 2005, the
Group had agreed to acquire a 50 years’ land use right of a
piece of land located in Shandong Province at a consideration
of RMB22,262,000.

32.

33.
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33.

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 33.

FLOWS (continued)

Major non-cash transactions (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the land lease
payments of RMB 16,697,000 were made by the Group

and the Group received a subsidy of RMB16,631,000 from
the Zhangqgiu Government for the construction cost of the
basic infrastructure to be incurred by the Group in Shandong
Province, the PRC. On 28 October 2006, the deposit of
RMB3,525,000 had been utilised for the grant of a land

use right of a piece of land with an area of 167,870 square
metres and its related certificate had been obtained from the
government land bureau of Shandong Province, the PRC.
Based on the Acquisition Agreement, the Group may request
the People’s Government of Zhangqiu to refund the unutilised
deposits of RMB13,172,000 if no further land use right
certificate was granted to the Group by 31 December 2008.

As at 31 December 2008, no further land use right certificate
was granted to the Group. Pursuant to a supplementary
agreement to the Acquisition Agreement, the Zhanggiu
Government agreed to refund the unutilised deposits to

the Group. Accordingly, the Group utilised the deposits of
RMB13,172,000 (approximately HK$14,985,000) with the
subsidy from Zhangqgiu Government. The remaining subsidy
of RMB3,459,000 (approximately HK$3,935,000) is deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
income statement by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 34, REBNTH
(a)  Aslessor (a) EREEA
The Group leases its investment property (note 18) REERBEEHEOLTHHERRE
under an operating lease arrangement, with a lease WE(M3E18) » A LA S HiE
negotiated for a term of two years. ITRER ©
At 31 December 2009, the Group had total future R-EBEENF+_A=+—H 1R
minimum lease receivables under a non-cancellable EAREBEEMEP R 2 TN RS
operating lease with its tenant falling due as follows: B REBRATHEZ RK

RIERKESEENT

Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EZThE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Within one year —FR 2,090 1,370
In the second to fifth years, F_EFERF
inclusive (PREEEWT) 1,307 -
3,397 1,370




161

Embry Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conmmuen)

BIRsERERMIEE ()

31 December 2009 —ZENF+-A=+—H

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its shops, counters,
warehouses, office properties and office equipment
under operating lease arrangements with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to eight years.

At 31 December 2009, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

34. EEENZH@E)
(b)

EREEA
AEBERBEEENLHERET
55 B BRE - RREWER
MAZERE  HOUN—ZEN\FOF
HETTRER ©

R-BEZAFE+-_A=+—H K
EEP AT BERE N BsE g
OB 2 RRFEHESETED
™

Group

rEE
2009 2008
—EEhE —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 55,341 57,054

In the second to fifth years, F_EFERF

inclusive (BREEWF) 21,219 32,661
After five years hFE 388 766
76,948 90,481

In addition, the Group has entered into agreements
with department stores to enable the Group to set up
its retail outlets therein. The operating lease rentals
for the use of their floor areas in department stores
are based on the higher of a fixed rental or contingent
rent based on sales of the retail outlets pursuant to
the terms and conditions as set out in the respective
agreements. As the future sales of these retail outlets
could not be accurately determined, the relevant
contingent rent has not been included above and only
the minimum lease commitments have been included
in the above table.

The Company has no operating lease arrangement at the end
of the reporting period.
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35.

COMMITMENTS 35.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments:

ZHFERBR AT FH 2009

i
RREMREER - AREZAENT

2009 2008
—EEAF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$000
FEr FEr
Contracted for capital commitments HERPRE2EFEE2IREZ
in respect of its wholly-owned BRTKVE AR
investments in the PRC 293,000 -
Contracted for commitments in respect of LA TNIE B ~ B 5] 495 E
— the land lease payments in the PRC —Ez L HEEFE 7,599 -
— the acquisition of property, —BEME  BEMEE
plant and equipment* 223,022 9,545
230,621 9,545
Authorised, but not contracted for ARLERE SRR E Y
commitments in respect of SRR AT KU AE
investment in the Shandong Factory
Phase 2 development 117,743 -

* As at 31 December 2009, the Group has contracted
for HK$223,022,000 in respect of the acquisition of the
property, plant and equipment, which is also included in the
above capital commitments in respect of its wholly-owned
investments in the PRC.

The Company had no significant commitment at the end of
the reporting period.

* R-ZEEAF+-_A=+—H £&
ERKENE  BEREEDFOA
223,022,000 70 © WE A il A
ERFRE2ERA ZIRE 2 EAFIE -

RABAHRE HRAAE B BB ARE

o
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

BERSMZEMTA
REEHREERRBSR T ANKEE

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as RN
follows:
Financial assets SRIEE
Group
A5E
2009 2008
“EENE ZEENE
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
fair value fair value
through through
Loans and profit or Loans and profit or
receivables loss Total receivables loss Total
ERRHR BiBEER
UAYE NATE
ERR - Rk iy
A SRIEE st eI B CREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiEx FiEx FET FET FET
Trade receivables EWE SED 48,228 - 48,228 41,703 - 41,703
Financial assets included in 51| A& FUE -
prepayments, deposits e REMEKR
and other receivables FEEREE 1,899 - 1,899 2,292 - 2,202
Financial assets at fair FREERIATE
value through profit S e BEE
or loss - - - - 23,014 23,014
Cash and cash equivalents BB & IR&ZEY 288,957 - 288,957 336,500 - 336,500
339,084 - 339,084 380,495 23,014 403,509




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conmmuen)

BIRSERER M (1)

31 December 2009 —ZENF+-A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 36.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

ZH

RERSTZEMIAE)

EMAE

BEEHATEZ T HMEAE

5 ERBRA TR F3H 2009

Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EThF —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade and bills payables B E SRR R EMNRE 36,823 33,021
Financial liabilities included in B B E At FE AT FRIE R
other payables and accruals EEtRIE SREE 40,060 24,808
76,883 57,919
Financial assets SRIEE
Loans and receivables B R EWE
Company
¥ /N
2009 2008
—ETAF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FEIT
Due from subsidiaries (note 24) JEURHTE A B FRIE (K 7224) 288,161 327,609
Cash and cash equivalents RWENIINEEEBEY 105,848 53,276
394,009 380,885
Financial liabilities ETHAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BB AT EC 2 FA E
Company
¥ YN
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Due to a subsidiary (note 24) e — IR B A R R IB (AT t24) 325 325
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, comprise cash
and short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such

as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s financial instruments are short term in nature.
The carrying amounts of these financial instruments reported
on the statement of financial position approximate to their fair
values, and hence there is no interest rate risk exposure in
relation to these instruments.

BHEAREREBEERBEK
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37.

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group carries on its sales and purchases transactions
mainly in Hong Kong dollars and RMB. As the foreign currency
risks generated from the sales and purchases can be set off
with each other, the foreign currency risk is minimal for the
Group. It is the policy of the Group to continue maintaining
the balance of its sales and purchases in the same currency.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
protect against the volatility associated with foreign currency
transactions and other financial assets and liabilities created
in the ordinary course of the business. However, as the
Group’s net profit is reported in Hong Kong dollars, there will
be a translation gain as a result of the RMB appreciation, and
vice versa. The majority of the Group’s operating assets are
located in Mainland China and are denominated in RMB.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group’s profit after tax and equity (due to changes in the
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

ZHFERBR AT FH 2009

BHRREEEERBKRE)

SN B
AEBEITEUBTRARBETEER
% RN EMEEEL ZINERR A EAR
BiH - BAKEZINERBRER - AEE
ZHBRBEBEF AR EEETERZ
Ty o AREEIWMIANTE SR T AR
AEEBBREIIERZREMEREE
KB ERMEZKRE - A - ARAEE
ZERABTTEY » MARETHER R
P ES - RZIRA - REBAREMDEE
BEBRNFBEIAREE - WAARESIR -

TERITFHBEBEEE - EFA A
TEREHHTENERT - AEEHH
Bt I A A RSER AR R A
BEDHEE (MR EEEEREEN
ATEED) -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit after
in RMB rate tax and equity
AR R ERT
EREHR RERRER M,
(~#) OGR4
% HK$'000
FET
2009 —EEhE
If Hong Kong dollar weakens BT ARBEZE
against RMB 5 13,310
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens BT AREBHE
against RMB (5) (13,310)
2008 —ETNF
If Hong Kong dollar weakens BT ARBEZE
against RMB 5 16,294
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens BT AREBHE
against RMB () (16,294)
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and on an individual basis. Each of the
customers has been attached with a trading limit and any
excess to the limit must be approved by the general manager
of the operation unit. Under the tight control of the credit term
and detailed assessment to the creditworthiness of individual
customers, the Group’s exposure to bad debts is maintained
as minimal.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in
note 21 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to meet
all contractual financial commitments as they fall due. The
Group’s objective is to maintain a prudent financial policy,
to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain
a contingency plan for funding to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirement.

The Group continued to enjoy a strong financial position with
cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$288,957,000 as
at 31 December 2009 (2008: HK$336,500,000).

The Group financed its operations and investment activities by
internally generated cash flows.

37.
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37.

ZHFERBR AT FH 2009

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. HBEREEBEEHERBEKRE)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REVESRK(E)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at RFEHEEEH - AEBRES LR,
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual BNFEEZemaEIEAnT
undiscounted payments, was as follows:
Group REME
Less than
On demand one year Total
RER DPR—F e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
2009 —EEhE
Trade and bills payables R E SRR N EN R 4,792 32,031 36,823
Other payables Hh fET T8 - 40,060 40,060
4,792 72,091 76,883
2008 ZZETN\F
Trade and bills payables BT E SRR B IR 8,841 24,180 33,021
Other payables Efh e RIE - 24,898 24,898
8,841 49,078 57,919
Capital management EXRER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to the owners through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance where appropriate. No change was made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008.

As the Group has no debts, its capital is entirely represented
by equity attributable to owners of the Company, which
comprises issued capital and reserves as detailed in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

REBEELEARUMRAEBERFES
B FAREEEREBBCERRIERE
ﬁ%(ﬁDL)ﬂ)Hﬂiﬁﬁ/\E’J@ﬁ%iﬁ—k‘J
RBE_ZTTZNFR_FFENF+_H
=t— EI&EJ* EREAZBR  BE
PRI EEH o

EEE/\$’$IJ‘£E1T7T% HABBRAGIEAR
NAEB ARG (BREEETERR
@) HEHENGARREPE -
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38.

39.

40.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 38.

On 26 February 2010, the Group obtained a bank facility from
a bank for a 5-year term loan of HK$190,000,000, which
bears interest at 1.08% above Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate per annum and repayable by 20 quarterly instalments.
The bank loan is supported by a corporate guarantee given
by the Company. The bank loan was utilised to the extent of
HK$100,000,000 at 31 March 2010.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 39.

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements,
due to the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs during
the current year, the presentation of certain balances in the
financial statements have been revised to comply with the
current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 40.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2010.

wEHBSERESE
R-ZT—FTF_F =+ XAEEH
—FRRITES—BRAFHETHE - A
2/190,000,00078 7T * & BB RT3
WEIMFEMEK1.08EFE - WEH201H
EEEIE - AQRIERIBITERIEMHIE
R RZET—EFE=RA=+—H 2HA
100,000,000/8 TLERITE X ©
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MR M2 25 - RREARSF
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